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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Peter's Episcopal Church's present edifice was built in 1849-52
and is constructed of red brick accentuated with red sandstone.

The main section of the church is rectangular with 3 :bays on the
gable end facade and five on the long side. A square tower with
spire projects out from the center of the gable end facade. This
tower, highlighted at the corners with buttresses trimmed in red
sandstone, is also brick and the equivalent to three stories high.
The entrance vestibule, constructed in 1969 in front of the tower
completely hides the Gothic arched double entrance as did an
earlier small wooden vestibule. Above the entrance is a Gothic
arched window over 12 feet in height. The bell emplacement is at
the top tier of the tower and has Gothic arched fenestration on
all four facades. The copper clad steeple replaced an earlier
one in 1936.

The long facade of St. Peter's Church has five Gothic arched
stained-glass windows depicting scenes of the life of Peter, the
Apostle (after whom the church was named) and the colonial
history of the church. Most of the stained-glass was added after
1918 when the Morgan munitions explosion in the Raritan Bay
destroyed many of the original glass panels.

In 1905, St. Peter's Church was lengthened to the rear to provide
for a larger chancel and an organ. This addition is of the same
type construction as the main church. This was also probably
when the baptistry was added to the side facade of the church.

In 1961 a Memorial Hall was built beneath the present church.
This excavated cellar now has seven rooms - including Sunday
school rooms, a vault, and a history room. Also completed

in 1961 was the St. James Chapel, a one room addition off the
side of the 1905 section.

In the last few years the 19th century churchyard fence, which
surrounded three sides of the property, was replaced with a
replica of the original.

The interior of St. Peter's Church has not been radically altered
since is erection. Entrance into the tower vestibule is made

by the small brick vestibule added in 1969. These vestibules
open to the aisle of the main church which has pews to either
side. At the far end of the original edifice, to the right, is
the pulpit. Beyond the pupit, to the center is the early

20th century chancel, choir, and altar. This addition has a
vaulted arch with wooden trusses.

The main unit of St. Peter's also has wooden trusses bracing 5
the vaulted plaster ceiling. Up until 1918 the ceilings -
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were false covering up the wooden trusses. The Morgan explosion
in 1918 forced some changes, however, including the replacement

of fallen ceiling and plaster, and the removal of the western
gallery.
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;ATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
1

St. Peter's is the oldest Episcopal congregation in New Jersey
having held continuous religion services since 1685; when it
communicants held their first service.

In 1698, the East Jersey Board of Proprietors gave a building to
the congregation. Also during this year, the parish was officially
organized.

A second bulldlng was dedicated in 1722 and lasted for nearly 130
years until 1849 when it was demolished.

The present edifice dates to 1852 when damages caused during
extensive occupation to the earlier building during Revolution
prompted the construction of a new building.

There was considerable opposition among the members of the parish
to the plan to tear down the 18th century building in 1849.

Those who built the old colonial landmark seemed to have possessed
prophetic knowledge of its end. When the ancient edifice was
being taken down the following inscription was found over the
portal: "O God! The Heathen have come into Thine inheritance.
The holy temple they have defiled and made Jerusalem a heap of
stones."

The inscription is from the seventy-ninth psalm, first verse, but
it is not an exact gquotation. The last part of Psalm 79:1 reads:
"They have laid Jerusalem on heaps."
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McGinnis, William C., History of St. Peter's Church . 1956
verbal data supplied by: Fred Merritt, Associate Wardin, St. Peter's Church
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Description cont'd

The Parrish House of St. Peter's EpiscoSéé%EZBrch/=9
was built in 1909 at a cost of $12,000. The housé-coul

be said to resemble the tnglish Tudor style. It is a

2% story, 5 bay building of brick construction. It has
a steep pitched gable roof and a central frontal gable.
There is half timbering in the front porch and the gable
ends. 4dhere are also lancet windows inscribed inieach
gable. lhere is a limestone watertable below the first
floor windows. +he window sills and the lintels are also
limestone.

lhe Parrish House is loceted directly across the street
from St. Peter's Church and the total acreage should be
increased %acre to 3 acres total.
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